
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

DEC I S I O N  O F  
T H E  

E X E CU T I V E  
M A YOR  

   

Tuesday, 5th May, 2015 
 

at 5.00 pm 
   

Hackney Town Hall  
  

Committee Member: 
 

 Mayor Jules Pipe 
  
  
Gifty Edila 
Corporate Director of 
Legal HR and Regulatory Services 
 

Contact:  Jackie Dally 
Tel:  020 8356 3503 
Email:  Jackie.Dally@hackney.gov.uk 
 



 
 

 

 

AGENDA 
Tuesday, 5th May, 2015 

  

ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

 
 

1   FREEHOLD ACQUISITION OF 333-337 MARE STREET HACKNEY E8  1 - 12 

 
2   LEASEHOLD DISPOSAL AT PARR COURT N1 7JD  13 - 22 

Item No  Page No 



 
 

 

 

Access and Information 
 

Location 
 
Hackney Town Hall is on Mare Street, bordered by Wilton Way and Reading Lane. 
 
 
Trains - Hackney Central Station (London Overground) - Turn right on leaving the 
station, turn right again at the traffic lights into Mare Street, walk 200 metres and look 
for the Hackney Town Hall, almost next to The Empire immediately after Wilton Way. 
 
 
Buses 30, 48, 55, 106, 236, 254, 277, 394, D6 and W15. 
 
 

Facilities 

There are public toilets available, with wheelchair access, on the ground floor of the Town 
Hall. 
 
Induction loop facilities are available in Rooms 102 and the Council Chamber  
 
Access for people with mobility difficulties can be obtained through the ramp on the side to 
the main Town Hall entrance. 
 

Copies of the Agenda 
The Hackney website contains a full database of meeting agendas, reports and minutes. 
Log on at: www.hackney.gov.uk 
 
Paper copies are also from the Governance Services Officer whose contact details are 
shown on page 2 of the agenda. 
 

Council & Democracy Website –  www.hackney.gov.uk  
The Council & Democracy section of the Hackney Council website contains details about 
the democratic process at Hackney, including: 
 

• Mayor of Hackney  
• Your Councillors  
• Cabinet  
• Speaker  
• MPs, MEPs and GLA 
• Committee Reports  
• Council Meetings  
• Executive Meetings and Key Decisions Notice  
• Register to Vote 
• Introduction to the Council  
• Council Departments  
 

 



 
 

 

  

DEMOCRATIC PROCESS 

 

Representation 
Contact details for all Councillors are available on the website or by calling 020 8356 3207. 
 
Ward Councillors may be contacted at their surgeries or through the Members’ Room at 
the Town Hall (020 8356 3207).  
 
You may also write to any Councillor or a member of the Cabinet c/o Hackney Town Hall, 
Mare Street, London E8 1EA.  
 
 

Scrutiny Procedures 
Details are listed in Part 4 of the Council’s constitution, see the website for more details or 
contact the Head of Overview and Scrutiny on 020 8356 3029 
  

Executive Meetings and Key Decisions Notice  
The procedure for taking Key Decisions is listed in Part 4 of the Council’s Constitution, 
available on the website. 
 
The Executive Meetings and Key Decisions Notice showing Key Decisions to be taken is 
available on the Council’s website and at the Town Hall.  
 

Emergency Procedures 

In case of fire or any other emergency the Head of Governance Services or his/her 
nominated officer will ensure orderly evacuation of all those present in the meeting room.  
All Members Officers and members of the public should proceed without delay to the 
assembly meeting point near the car park at the back of the Town Hall where the 
nominated officer will conduct a count of all who have been evacuated to ensure that all 
are safe. 
 

Advice To Members And Officers On Handling Exempt Papers 

• Do not photocopy  
• Store securely for as long as you hold it  
• All papers can be given to Governance Services Officers who will dispose of 

them appropriately and arrange for them to be recycled  
• Note that copies of all exempt papers are held by Governance Services staff. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 

 

ADVICE TO MEMBERS ON DECLARING INTERESTS 
Hackney Council’s Code of Conduct applies to all Members of the Council,   
the Mayor and co-opted Members.  
 
This note is intended to provide general guidance for Members on declaring interests. 
However, you may need to obtain specific advice on whether you have an interest in a 
particular matter. If you need advice, you can contact: 
 

• The Corporate Director of Legal, HR and Regulatory Services; 
• The Legal Adviser to the committee; or 
• Governance Services. 

 
If at all possible, you should try to identify any potential interest you may have before 
the meeting so that you and the person you ask for advice can fully consider all the 
circumstances before reaching a conclusion on what action you should take.  
 
 
1.  Do you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in any matter on the 

agenda or which is being considered at the meeting? 
You will have a disclosable pecuniary interest in a matter if it:  

 
i. relates to an interest that you have already registered in Parts A and C of the 

Register of Pecuniary Interests of you or your spouse/civil partner, or anyone 
living with you as if they were your spouse/civil partner; 

   
ii. relates to an interest that should be registered in Parts A and C of the  Register of 

Pecuniary Interests of your spouse/civil partner, or anyone living with you as if 
they were your spouse/civil partner, but you have not yet done so; or 

 
iii. affects your well-being or financial position or that of your spouse/civil partner, or 

anyone living with you as if they were your spouse/civil partner. 
 
 
2. If you have a disclosable pecuniary interest in an item on the 

agenda you must: 
i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant agenda 

item) as soon as it becomes apparent to you (subject to the rules regarding 
sensitive interests).  

 
ii. You must leave the room when the item in which you have an interest is being 

discussed.  You cannot stay in the meeting room or public gallery whilst 
discussion of the item takes place and you cannot vote on the matter.  In addition, 
you must not seek to improperly influence the decision. 

 
iii. If you have, however, obtained dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or 

Standards Committee you may remain in the room and participate in the meeting.  
If dispensation has been granted it will stipulate the extent of your involvement, 
such as whether you can only be present to make representations, provide 
evidence or whether you are able to fully participate and vote on the matter in 
which you have a pecuniary interest. 

 
 



 
 

 

 

3.  Do you have any other non-pecuniary interest on any matter on 
the agenda which is being considered at the meeting? 

You will have ‘other non-pecuniary interest’ in a matter if: 
 
i. It relates to an external body that you have been appointed to as a Member or in 

another capacity; or  
 
ii. It relates to an organisation or individual which you have actively engaged in 

supporting. 
 
 
4. If you have other non-pecuniary interest in an item on the agenda 

you must: 
i. Declare the existence and nature of the interest (in relation to the relevant agenda 

item) as soon as it becomes apparent to you.  
 
ii. You may remain in the room, participate in any discussion or vote provided that 

contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence matters are not under 
consideration relating to the item in which you have an interest.   

 
iii. If you have an interest in a contractual, financial, consent, permission or licence 

matter under consideration, you must leave the room unless you have obtained a 
dispensation from the Monitoring Officer or Standards Committee.  You cannot 
stay in the room or public gallery whilst discussion of the item takes place and you 
cannot vote on the matter.  In addition, you must not seek to improperly influence 
the decision.  Where members of the public are allowed to make representations, 
or to give evidence or answer questions about the matter you may, with the 
permission of the meeting, speak on a matter then leave the room. Once you have 
finished making your representation, you must leave the room whilst the matter is 
being discussed.   
 

iv. If you have been granted dispensation, in accordance with the Council’s 
dispensation procedure you may remain in the room.  If dispensation has been 
granted it will stipulate the extent of your involvement, such as whether you can 
only be present to make representations, provide evidence or whether you are 
able to fully participate and vote on the matter in which you have a non pecuniary 
interest.   

 

 

  

Further Information 
Advice can be obtained from Gifty Edila, Corporate Director Legal, HR and Regulatory 
Services, on 020 8356 3265 or email Gifty.Edila@hackney.gov.uk 
 

 

 
FS 566728 
 
 



 

 
 

 

 

 

 
 
CABINET REPORT 
 
 
FREEHOLD ACQUISITION OF 333-337 
MARE STREET HACKNEY E8  
 
 
5 May 2015 
 

 
CLASSIFICATION:  
 
OPEN 
 
If exempt, the reason will be listed in the 
main body of this report. 

 
WARD(S) AFFECTED 
 
Hackney Central 
 
 

 
KEY DECISION 
 
Yes 
 
REASON 
 
Spending or Savings 
 
 
CORPORATE DIRECTOR 
 
Ian Williams Corporate Director of Finance and Resources 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 1



SPECIAL URGENCY 

Pursuant to Regulation 11 of The Local Authority (Executive Authority) 
(Meeting and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012 this report 
is submitted under Special Urgency. 
 
The reason for urgency is that deferring the process until the next Cabinet 
meeting is not possible given the deadline to exchange contracts and 
complete this purchase. The vendor might otherwise decide to dispose to 
another party from whom they have already received a competitive offer to 
purchase this property. In view of the Strategic significance of this property 
to the both the Council’s Regeneration agenda for Hackney Central 
together with the desire to acquire commercial investments to generate 
additional rental income for the future it is considered vital therefore that 
this opportunity is not lost.    
 
1.     CABINET MEMBER’S INTRODUCTION 

1.1    This property acquisition enables the Council to secure ownership that it 
currently does not have within the heart of Hackney Central and adjacent 
to the station. The location of this property is such that potentially it could 
also give the Council the opportunity to further shape Hackney Central in 
the future.  

1.2 This property is not only strategically located but further provides the 
Council with an excellent investment being leased to a high street brand  
producing a sizeable rental income which has significant growth prospects  
at the next rent review.   

1.3    I commend this report and the recommendation to acquire the freehold 
interest in this property.     

 

2.     CORPORATE DIRECTOR’S INTRODUCTION 

2.1  This report seeks approval to purchase a freehold interest in a substantial 
building prominently located within Hackney Central with a significant 
frontage onto Mare Street and the adjoining Hackney Central station 

 
2.2 The acquisition of this property will enable the Council to secure   

ownership of a key site within Hackney Central with also the potential to 
further shape this part of Hackney in the future. In addition it is a further 
building block in ensuring that Hackney becomes more financially self-
sustainable a key aspect of the Medium Term Financial Strategy. 

 
 
 
 

Page 2



2.3     The business case setting out the financial justification for this purchase is 
set out within Appendix C. This shows a modest initial yield and also 
demonstrates on the basis of the estimated current rental value that this 
yield should dramatically improve at the first rent review in December 
2017. Aside from this however the purchase of this property is also 
predicated on the basis of its strategic significance within Hackney Central 
and its adjacency with the station. 

  

 3.        RECOMMENDATIONS 

 

3.1 To approve the Council’s purchase of the freehold interest in 333-337 
Mare Street Hackney E8 as shown outlined in red on the plan in 
Appendix A and on the terms indicated in Appendix B both as 
annexed to this report. 

3.2 To authorise the Corporate Director of Finance and Resources to 
agree the commercial terms for the acquisition to achieve exchange 
and completion of the acquisition. 

3.3 To authorise the Corporate Director of Legal, HR and Regulatory 
Services to agree the contractual terms for the acquisition of the 
freehold interest in 333-337 Mare Street and to sign and complete all 
other relevant and ancillary legal documentation arising thereto on 
behalf of the Council. 

3.4 To delegate to the Corporate Director of Finance and Resources 
authority to determine the most cost effective option in terms of 
financing the acquisition provided that it represents best value on 
the part of the Council. 

 

4.       REASONS FOR DECISION 

4.1 The acquisition of this property is seen as further support for and around 
the Council’s regeneration objectives and aspirations for Hackney Central.  
Whilst this purchase is essentially to provide the Council with a 
commercial investment opportunity it may however offer the potential for 
further improvement/development in the future. 

  

5. DETAILS OF ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS CONSIDERED AND REJECTED  

5.1 No alternative options have been considered as this is a standalone 
 opportunity supported on its own merits. 
 
 
 
 

Page 3



6. BACKGROUND 
 
6.1  The regeneration of Hackney Central Town Centre is a key priority for the 

Council and the acquisition of buildings is a key strand of the work to 
unlock all of the development potential of the area. Our partners on the 
Fashion Hub Manhattan Loft Corporation and Chatham Works have been 
purchasing considerable amounts of land surrounding the fashion hub in 
recent months to enable the development to reach its full potential. The 
reach of the scheme has considerably expanded and will enable much 
more retail, studio and manufacturing space to be incorporated into the 
scheme helping to create considerable economic growth and prosperity for 
the town centre and the Borough. The location of this property is in close 
proximity to the fashion hub and will complement the Council’s desire to 
regenerate Hackney Central. 

      
6.2  This property is located within the heart of Hackney Central lying both 

adjacent to Hackney Central Station and in proximity of The Narroway. It 
comprises a building of approximately 21,000 square feet and is arranged 
over ground and first floors. The ground floor has 10,972 square feet and 
is devoted to retail and storage/ancillary space. The first floor of 10,060 
square feet is also used as ancillary space and provides staff 
accommodation. Approximately 5000 square feet of the first floor is 
unused with scope for further development subject to negotiation with the 
existing tenant.  

 
6.3   The entire premises are let to Iceland Foods Limited on a 15 year lease 

from 25th December 2012 subject to 5 yearly open market rent reviews at 
a current rent payable of £245,000 per annum.  

 
6.4   This commercial investment has not been openly marketed but there has 

been various interest expressed and the Council was made aware of this 
opportunity through intelligence by one of our framework surveying firms. 
The vendor has already accepted an offer to purchase this property from 
another party and they have agreed a timeframe to exchange on the 1st 
May. This however is not now going to be achieved and the vendor in view 
of our interest and the higher offer we have made has agreed that a 
contract should also be issued to the Council. The Council and the other 
party have until noon on the 12th May 2015 to be in a position to exchange 
contracts and to submit their best and final offers. It is proposed should it 
be necessary that we increase our offer further and this increase is 
reflected within both Appendices B & C. All due diligence is also to be 
carried out and necessary authority obtained to meet this timeframe if not 
before.  

   
 

Page 4



6.5  The financial terms that have subsequently been offered for the purchase 
of this property are as set out within Appendix B along with the financial 
analysis and rationale for the purchase price being paid within Appendix 
C.   

    
6.6 Policy Context 
 

The purchase of the freehold interest in this property is seen as 
complimenting the existing regeneration that is taking shape with the 
fashion hub along with other developments within Hackney Central. This 
acquisition also seeks to meet the Council’s objective of securing 
commercial investments to generate further rental streams in the face of 
further austerity plans facing Local Authorities over the next few years.             

      
6.7     Equality Impact Assessment 
 

            No equalities issues are believed to arise from this report. 
 
6.8 Sustainability 
 
          No sustainability issues arise from this report. 
 
6.9    Consultations 
 

           No consultations have been conducted with Ward Members although 
there have been prior discussions at Cabinet/HMT together with the Lead 
Member for Property the Mayor. 

 
6.10    Risk Assessment 
      
            This acquisition is regarded as low risk as this property is let on a lease 

with 12 years remaining to a high street brand representing a good 
covenant. The existing rent passing is also considerably below the 
current market rental value providing significant prospects for rental 
growth by the time of the next rent review in 2017. Aside from this there 
may also be good prospects of achieving further income from additional 
development of this site subject to addressing any existing restrictions 
and other rights/interests that may impact the implementation of potential 
development proposals. 

 
7 COMMENTS FROM INTERIM ASSISTANT DIRECTOR STRATEGIC 

PROPERTY SERVICES 
 

Page 5



7.1    The purchase price offered (as shown in the attached Appendix B) is for an 
off market deal and has taken account of current market conditions and 
the offer the vendor has already received.  

 
7.2    The offer that has been made by the Council however represents a fair 

price having regard to the existing rent and that anticipated at the next rent 
review. This price can also be further predicated on the strategic 
significance and location of this property within Hackney Central. 

 
8   COMMENTS OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF FINANCE & 

RESOURCES   
 
8.1 The purchase price as set out in exempt Appendix B is considered to be a 

fair price given the interest in the site that has already been expressed by 
other potential buyers and current values for retail investments in the area. 
It is anticipated that the purchase will be financed from reserves held by 
the authority although the final option for financing will be considered as 
part of the wider financing of the capital programme to ensure that the 
option representing best value is used. 

 
8.2  As set out in this report, the acquisition is considered low risk given the 

current lease arrangement in place and whilst initial yields based on 
current rents are modest, it is anticipated that there will be considerable 
rental growth at the time of the next rent review in 2017.  
 

8.3     Further to the financial aspects above which provide further opportunity for 
the Council to secure ongoing revenue streams, the site is seen as a 
major key site that will assist the Council in its ambition to influence the 
future of the Hackney Central area. 

 
9   COMMENTS OF THE CORPORATE DIRECTOR OF LEGAL, HR & 

REGULATORY SERVICES 
 
9.1 The Local Government Act 1972, Section 120 empowers the Council to 

acquire land by agreement with a third party for (a) the purpose of any of 
its functions, or (b) the benefit, improvement or development of its area.  

 
9.2 The report, paragraph 8 and Appendix B outlines the financial benefits of 

the acquisition and the strategic significance of the site within Hackney 
Central which will contribute to the regeneration of the area to achieve 
economic growth.  Paragraph 8 also notes that the acquisition is at a fair 
price with the potential for considerable rental growth.   The reasons given 
are in line with the statutory power under section 120. 

 
9.3 The opportunity to acquire the site has been given to the Council and a 

third party under the terms of a contract race that the Seller will sell to the 

Page 6



party with the best offer coupled with the ability to exchange contracts by 
noon on Tuesday 12 May 2015.  A thorough due diligence exercise must 
be undertaken to assess the rights and interests affecting the property and 
the potential future use of the site. 

 
 
10 COMMENTS OF THE HEAD OF REGENERATION DELIVERY 
 
10.1 This property is in an area that is rapidly developing as an economic hub 

of activity for the fashion and creative industries. 
 
10.2 Market data suggests that rents are escalating in this area for start up and 

grow-on workspace and a current lack of availability of this type of 
commercial accommodation is driving prices up and making them 
unaffordable for local businesses.  

 
10.3 The Regeneration Delivery team therefore supports the council’s purchase 

of this building and the opportunity it presents to bring new market rent 
and affordable workspace into this growing market. 

 
APPENDIX B AND C 
 

The appendices are classified as Exempt on the following basis: 
 
By virtue of Paragraph (3) Part 1 of schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 
1972 Appendix B and C to the Report are exempt because it contains information 
relating to the financial or business affairs of any particular person (including the 
authority holding the information) and it is considered that the public interest in 
maintaining the exemption outweighs the public interest in disclosing the 
information.  

  
BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
NONE 
                                     
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 7



 
 
Report Author 
 

Peter Edwards– Tel:  020 8356 2603 
Peter.edwards@hackney.co.uk 
 

Comments of the Corporate Director 
of Finance and Resources 

Michael Honeysett – Tel: 020 8356 3332 
Michael.honeysett@hackney.co.uk 
 

Comments of the Corporate Director 
of Legal, HR and Regulatory Services 

Patricia Narebor – Tel 020 8356 2029 
 – Property and Regeneration 
Patricia .narebor@hackney.gov.uk 
 

Comments of the Head of 
Regeneration and Delivery  

Carl Welham – Tele 020 8356 2310 
Carl. Welham @hackney.gov.uk 
 

Comments of the Interim Assistant 
Director for Strategic Property 
Services 

Chris Pritchard – Tele 020 8356 3700 
Chris.Pritchard@hackney.gov.uk 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
AUTHORISATION OF the Mayor Jules Pipe: 
 
 
Signature: ……………………………….. 
 
 
Date: ……………………………….. 

 

Page 8



Scale 1/1250 at A3

Date 5/5/2015

This product includes mapping data licensed from Ordnance Survey with the permission of HMSO © Crown
Copyright 2011. All rights reserved. License number 100019635. 2011. © Bartholomew Litd. Reproduced by
permission Harper Collins Publishers 2010. Cities Revealed© Copyright by The GeoInformation Group 2010.

Centre = 534928 E 184910 N Produced by:

Contact No:

Annotations
BDY Hackney Mask
LLPG Mailing Addresses
BLD Historic Land Registry Property Data
Land Registry Public Owned - August 2014
OSMM Carto Text
OSMM Topo Point
OSMM Topo Line
OSMM Topo Area
Barts_Hackney_20k
OS VectorMap Local
OS_25k_LiteColour
LBH_Overview

P
age 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 11

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 13

Agenda Item 2
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 21

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	1 FREEHOLD ACQUISITION OF 333-337 MARE STREET HACKNEY E8
	Appendix A Mare Street
	Mare Street EXEMPT APPENDIX B and C

	2 LEASEHOLD DISPOSAL AT PARR COURT N1 7JD
	Red line plan showing location of 18 Parr Court


